# SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 JANUARY 2025

Present: Councillors Blackman (Chair), Evemy, Y Frampton, Kloker, Leggett,

McManus and Stead

Appointed Members: Rob Sanders

Apologies: Councillors Powell-Vaughan and Renyard

Also in attendance:

## 42. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

The apologies of Councillors Powell-Vaughan and Renyard were noted.

#### 43. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

Resolved that, the minutes of the committee meeting held on 12 December 2024 be approved as an accurate record.

### 44. SAFE CITY PARTNERSHIP - ANNUAL REVIEW

Councillor C Lambert - Cabinet Member for Communities and Safer City, Rob Henderson - Chair of the Safe City Partnership, Chris Brown - Head of Stronger Communities, Anna Harbridge - Service Manager, Youth Justice and Chief Inspector Chris Douglas - Hampshire Constabulary, were in attendance and with the consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.

Rob Henderson provided an overview of the report detailing some of the specific areas where progress has been achieved since last year's update and the ongoing challenges facing the Southampton Safe City Partnership.

Members were informed by the representatives in attendance that the Safe City Partnership Plan had been refreshed to provide greater focus to the work of the partnership, the Youth Justice Board had been incorporated into the Safe City Partnership, and that a Partnership Executive Group had been formed, chaired by the City Council's Chief Executive, and with senior representatives from strategic partners in the city, to work collectively to address key city wide challenges.

The work of the partnership was now more data driven, with greater sharing of operational data between partners. This was underpinning the focussed deterrent model employed to reduce youth violence and the deployment of Designated Neighbourhood Officers that continue to evidence a positive impact on local communities.

The issue of public confidence in the Safe City Partnership and Hampshire Constabulary was raised. Chief Inspector Douglas raised Let's Talk, the constabulary's new community survey initiative that aims to understand the needs of local communities and enables the public to share concerns with the police.

Public confidence had risen following the nationwide disorder in the summer of 2024. This provided the police and partners with a number of learning opportunities, particularly on the effective and timely sharing of information with communities.

The Committee noted the update and made additional comments with regards to the following:

- The absence of Designated Neighbourhood Officers in some areas of the city, notably the Banister and Polygon ward.
- The hope that the Council's review of Police and Communities Together (PACT) meetings would lead to improved community engagement.
- Effectively informing partners and the public about the impact of Safe City Partnership initiatives on crime and disorder.
- The lack of detail relating to arrest and conviction rates within the dataset provided.
- The importance of prevention and addressing the wider determinants of crime in Southampton.

#### Resolved

- 1) That, to provide additional context to the crime data presented to the Committee, formal action taken rates are included within the report presented to the OSMC in 2025/26.
- 2) That, consideration is given by Hampshire Constabulary to appointing a Designated Neighbourhood Officer for the Banister and Polygon Ward
- 3) That, reflecting concerns about the lack of awareness of the positive actions and outcomes achieved by the Safer Streets 4 programme in Southampton, the communications plan for Safer Streets 5 is circulated to the Committee.
- 4) That, members of the Committee who are interested in taking up the offer from Chief Inspector Douglas to accompany him on a night-time economy patrol are requested to contact the Head of Stronger Communities.

# 45. FORWARD PLAN - ADULT LEARNING DISABILITY RESIDENTIAL RESPITE PROVISION

Councillor Finn - Cabinet Member for Adults and Health, Rob Henderson - Executive Director for Community, Wellbeing, Children and Learning, Kay Reeve - Director of Adult Social Care and Donna Chapman - Deputy Director of the Integrated Commissioning Unit were in attendance and with the consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.

Members of the public, representatives of service users, staff and providers were also in attendance and with the consent of the Chair a number also addressed the meeting.

Councillor Finn provided an overview of the proposals including details relating to the consultation and the responses to the consultation, and the options being considered by Cabinet.

Following consideration of the representations made by the members of the public and service providers in attendance, the Committee identified the following concerns with the approach being proposed by the Council:

- The service provider of residential respite care for adults with learning disabilities in Southampton that currently delivers the most expensive and, according to the feedback provided, the most inconsistent quality of care is the Council.
- The options being presented to Cabinet on 28<sup>th</sup> January 2025 exclude the
  external provision of all residential respite services despite the potential for this
  option to deliver a service that provides better outcomes at a lower cost than the
  other options included within the report.
- The credibility of the assumptions within the report about costs, capacity and usage that the recommendations are predicated on.

#### Resolved

That, reflecting feedback that the current non-Council providers of respite services for adults in Southampton are delivering services at the cost and quality that the Council is aspiring to, an additional option of provision of residential respite services entirely by external providers should be included for consideration by Cabinet. Therefore, the Committee recommends that the Cabinet decision scheduled for 28<sup>th</sup> January is postponed enabling this option to be explored and the required details obtained.

#### 46. MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE

The Committee considered and discussed the responses from the Executive to recommendations from previous meetings.